ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 2, 2009
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator KimElton, Chair

Senat or Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Overview. Miore vs. State

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
(Continuation of 2/20 neeting)
W TNESS REQ STER

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding inpact of More
vs. State.

NEI L SLOTNI K, Seni or Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Cvil Division

Labor and State Affairs Section

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding inpact of Moore
vs. State.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02:31 AM

CHAIR KIM ELTON called the Senate Education Standing Conmittee
nmeeting to order at 8:02 a.m Present at the call to order were
Senators Davis, Huggins, dson and Elton.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 2, 2009



MOORE VS. STATE

8: 03: 56 AM

CHAI R ELTON announced the continuation of the overview of More
vs. State and what the departnent’s and Legislature’'s role is in
working to neet the mandates of Superior Court Judge d eason. He
asked M. Jeans to review what he thinks the judge told the
departnment to do in 60 days.

SENATOR STEVENS j oi ned t he neeti ng.

8:04:10 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED), deferred
the answer to M. Sl otnik.

NEI L SLOTNI K, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Civil D vision
Labor and State Affairs Section, Departnment of Law (DOL), said
he was representing the DEED. He explained that in the nobst
recent Mdore decision, the <court ruled that the state’'s
intervention plans in the districts were not broad enough in
scope and they have not considered early literacy standards for
a broad-based education or curriculum alignnment. Furthernore,
the plans didn't |ook specifically enough at the strengths and
weaknesses of each underperforming district, that existing
intervention is too nuch of a one-size fits all, and noted the
| ack of teaching capacity in the intervention districts. The
decision required the state to assess its own capacity to run
these interventions and gave the state 60 days to bring back
amended plans for each district to acconplish these objectives.

CHAI R ELTON asked him how far along they are on addressing the
judge’ s concerns and said after that they could segue to whether
or not the departnment would need help through the budget to
acconplish that in this session.

8:07: 05 AM

MR. JEANS said they cane to the legislature |ast year for
addi tional support as well as legislation to nake it very clear
to school districts and school boards that once the departnent
has identified that a school or district is underperformng that
the legislature gave the departnent clear authority to intervene
in those districts or schools. And, he said, with SB 285 the
| egi sl ature gave them clear authority to redirect resources or
to nmake personnel decisions in those underperform ng schools or

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 2, 2009



school districts basically from the principal on up - anybody
that has to do with instruction outside of the teachers.

That gets back to the |eadership conponent, he said. If the
districts or individual schools have weak |eadership, it's a
good bet they'll be underperform ng. Wien the departnent started
its intervention strategies even before this last hearing, they
found those schools and districts were Jlacking in three
“foundational skills:” |eadership, using formative assessnents,
and collaboration anong the teachers to inprove student
achievenment. This is where the judge found it was too uniform a
program for the individual districts.

Comm ssi oner LeDoux made school intervention strategies the main
focus of the Deputy Conmi ssioner, Les Mrse, who is very
famliar with the individual schools and district performnce,
as he has been doing that data collection and analyses in AYP
for the last six or eight years. He had already started
addressing many of the issues that Judge d eason raised in her
final order.

He is working with districts to individualize their school
i mprovenent plans and having neetings with the superintendents
as well as the board president so that they understand what
intervention nmeans in their district. This gets back to the
judge’s ruling that the Legislature can delegate its authority
to operate schools as long as they're performng. If they are
not performng, local control nust give way. That’'s what SB 285
made very cl ear.

8:10: 21 AM

CHAI R ELTON said Judge d eason was aware of what the Legislature
had done last year but kind of questioned the departnment’s
capacity to fulfill what the Legislature granted.

MR. JEANS explained there were two pieces. First, she thought
the two percent annual growth in reading, witing and math that
a district would have to obtain before it could return to |oca
control was too low M. Jeans added that he still believes it
was an adequate and appropriate neasurenent. The departnent
wasn’t sure the judge understood it was to be 2 percent in each
category - reading, witing and math - for three consecutive
years. Testinmony from the departnment’s experts said growh
happened at a nmuch hi gher rate.

JUDGE GLEASON S second issue was the departnent’s capacity, but
SB 285 gave them three nore positions. However, because of the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 2, 2009



way the state budget process works, npst people they would hire
for those positions were already under contract, so it was
difficult for them to imediately respond to the legislative
action. The sane would happen this year with the additional
positions; nost would already be enployed. They are currently
recruiting for additional positions to start July 1st.

8:12: 53 AM
CHAIR ELTON asked if he nmeans he's recruiting for nore than the
three positions they were expecting to fill.

MR. JEANS clarified that two out of the three positions are
filled; they are recruiting for one as well as another position
within the departnent t hat has been re-designated for
interventions. They are asking for $800,000 to expand their
capacity to provide technical assistance, but they are not
asking for nore positions. They want to hire teachers from the
districts simlar to what is done with the nentoring program
These teachers would work under contract for the departnent for
a couple of years and then return back to the district. They
feel doing it that way gets the best expertise in the state into
t hose areas.

8:14: 17 AM
SENATOR STEVENS said he didn't understand the criticism of "one
size fits all" and remarked that you have to have some comon

direction. What did the judge nean by that?

8:14:42 AM

MR. JEANS explained that the judge was |ooking at the very
beginning of their intervention strategies. Their approach was
to look at the foundational pieces that were mssing within the
districts and to address those first. But she says they have to
| ook beyond those foundational pieces. That's why Deputy
Comm ssioner Morse will be having those neetings with the board
presidents and superintendents to get their additional input on
what they believe they need as assi stance.

He wanted to nmake it clear that the judge did say that the
school districts have adequate resources to do the job they need
to do. The departnent needs to help these districts identify
what their weaknesses are and figure out what they need to
address them The departnment can help them find the resources
wi thin their own budgets.

8:15:45 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 2, 2009



SENATOR HUGG NS wanted to know how nmany students they are
tal king about, and he also remarked that sone of the schools
were fairly small. Also he asked if Head Start Program funding
is increased and nore prograns are started, how those positions
woul d be devel oped.

MR. JEANS replied that Head Start is federally funded by grants
such as "Rural Cap." The last couple of years the departnent
asked for an additional $600,000 to “cut in” to the statew de
waiting list of 1,000. Head Start is a "wap around"” program
that includes not only early |earning, but dental and counseling
services to both children and parents, and health care. The
prograns tend to operate pretty independently right now, but the
Head Start | egi sl ation has a conponent t hat requires
col | aboration, and nore of that is being seen.

One of the departnent’s strategies is to put an early |earning
educator in the school who will collaborate with the Head Start
Program in those conmmunities instead of trying to duplicate
services by starting a pre-K programin a comunity where 80-90
percent of the children are already being served through a head
start program

8:18: 18 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked if they have problens with districts not
supporting existing early |earning prograns now.

MR. JEANS replied that they get “m xed reviews” especially with
Head Start, and building those bridges is what the departnent
needs to work on. He admtted sonme prograns in the state are
effective, sone are not. So to say districts need to add pre-K
to the systemisn't enough. The needs of the kids in a community
need to be identified and then those needs have to be fill ed.

8:19: 25 AM

CHAI R ELTON asked superintendents in the audience to raise their
hands and to subnit their questions to his office so he could
respond to them He asked M. Jeans what authority the
departnment has in an underperformng district to change
| eadershi p, and how do they address teaching capacity.

8:.20: 38 AM

MR. JEANS answered that previous to SB 285, the only authority
they had was through No Child Left Behind (NCLB) and that was a
gray area. The departnent spoke to the school board in one
district they had intervened in where the principal was a

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 2, 2009



probl em the board agreed and renoved him Wth this
| egi sl ation, the departnment can force reassignnent.

As for teaching capacity there is very high turn over in the
rural communities, he stated. They are in discussions with UAA
on developing prograns to address that including providing
incentives for people to go to those rural areas.

CHAIR ELTON asked if the judge expects themto be able to answer
that issue in 60 days, as well.

MR. JEANS replied he thinks she just needs to see progress.

8:23: 09 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked M. Jeans to explain the strategy behind
the director of rural education position.

MR. JEANS explained that is another initiative from Conm ssioner
LeDoux who wants to hire an Al aska Native who would be the
director of rural education. He believes that a person of that
stature could have discussions with individual |eaders in rura

communities that he and Deputy Comm ssioner Mrse couldn't have
to help bridge the gap between the departnent and the districts
to help identify their needs. They are recruiting for that now
and that is already included in their budget.

8:24:15 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS said it seens when people look at renediation
plans for districts, they need a md-term and |long-term
strategy, not just the short-termplan to satisfy the judge.

8:25: 03 AM

MR. JEANS said he doesn't think this is a knee-jerk reaction to
the ruling. The state’s accountability system wusing their
assessment systemis relatively new They are trying to build on
the data that actually shows them specific areas children are
underperformng in. They can help districts identify what
resources areas have available and what progranms work to
i ncrease student achievenent in those particular areas. He
t hought they were already headed down this road wthout the
judge's decision; she just wants them to nove faster than they
are.

8:26:13 AM

CHAIR ELTON said Senator Huggins was talking about both
departnment and the | egislature.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 2, 2009



SENATOR HUGGE NS agreed; he said 40 percent non-graduates is a
| ong-term probl em

CHAIR ELTON directed them to the chart on reading proficiency
that indicated inprovenent in three schools, and he asked if the
departnment had identified what those districts are doing to
achieve those inprovenents and if what they are doing is
transferabl e.

8:27:42 AM

MR. JEANS replied that is what Deputy Conm ssioner Mrse is
| ooking at, but a specific program had not been identified.
Hoonah has the “Parents as Teachers” program that helps a |ot,
but that has been in place for 14 years. So, he couldn't tie
i mprovenent back to that specific program At St. Miry’'s Dave

Herbert, the superintendent, is a very dedicated and very good
instructional leader. “It starts with the | eadership.”
8:28:49 AM

CHAIR ELTON asked if four years is a long tinme for serving in
t hese | eadership positions.

MR. JEANS replied he isn't sure; M. Herbert had been at St.
Mary's for a nunber of years.

CHAI R ELTON said he assuned these charts were used in the court
case.

MR. JEANS confirnmed that.

CHAI R ELTON asked if this is part of the data the judge used in
attenpting to determ ne what the departnment was capabl e of doing
in sone of those underperform ng districts.

8:29:46 AM

MR. JEANS responded that he isn't convinced the judge totally
understands the education |andscape in Alaska, and that the
state has 90 schools that are serving 30 or fewer students.
Schools of that size have one or tw teachers and it’'s very
difficult to provide a very high quality educational program in
that small of a setting. The judge used a |ot of anecdotal
information from people who testified.

8:30: 37 AM

CHAI R ELTON responded that the judge has been hearing this case
for several years, and if that is the case, you can't just say
to her at the end of 60 days that she doesn't understand.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 2, 2009



8:31:31 AM

MR. JEANS said they have no intention of doing that, but there
is the reality of these small schools scattered throughout
Al aska. Many teachers go into these schools as new teachers for
a couple of years, but when they start their own famlies they
don't want to stay there. Maybe the departnment needs to be
| ooking at incentives to get experienced teachers to go to these
areas and stay for three to five years at least. That is one of
the things that kept coming up in the court case, the revolving
door in these comunities. The departnent is aware of the
probl em and is working on ways to inprove retention.

8:33: 27 AM

SENATOR HUGG NS agreed that continuity for the Kkids is
inmportant. He asked if they are talking about Title 1 schools
and for himto explain what those schools get for being Title 1.

8:34:15 AM

MR. JEANS replied for the nost part, they are talking about
Title 1 schools. Title 1 schools are those that have a high
percentage of their population in poverty, so they get
addi ti onal resources through the federal governnent. The problem
with that is strings are always attached. The NCLB m ght allow
flexibility in how Title 1 funds are wused to address
deficiencies, but he didn't know if they could be used for
retention bonuses.

8: 35: 03 AM

SENATOR HUGEA NS said it would be helpful to know which schools
are Title 1 and remarked that those schools also have an
accountability factor.

MR. JEANS replied that the departnment has nore flexibility in
directing Title 1 funds under NCLB, but he'd like to think under
SB 285 they are treating all schools the sanme way. The
| egi sl ature gave them clear authority to redirect any of the
districts’ state resources to inprove instructional practices.
SB 285 was a huge step in the right direction.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked him to let him know how many conmunities
have housing for teachers.

8:36:40 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said it seened to him that in the 70's there
were sone good teachers in the rural comunities around Kodi ak,

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 2, 2009



and the state was paying the highest salaries in the nation at
that time. He asked if there is a correlation with salary.

8:37:18 AM

MR. JEANS replied that is the kind of work that needs to be done
through the wuniversity system He has seen UAA studies that
indicate that salary isn't what keeps people in rural Al aska.
It’s nore the quality of life. They are trying to find ways to
incent those experienced teachers whose famlies have graduated
from high school and gone on to college to go back out to the
rural areas.

8:38:11 AM

SENATOR DAVIS said she knows the departnment is working on the
probl enms, but she wants to know exactly what they intend to do
in 30 days when they go back to court.

8:39:35 AM

MR. JEANS answered that is what Deputy Commr ssioner Mrse is
doing with the superintendents and board presidents — rewiting
i ndi vi dual school /district inprovenent plans. That is one of the
key points the judge said they didn't do in their first go-round
— that it was not a collaborative effort.

SENATOR DAVI S asked himto give the commttee sonething on paper
showi ng what they intend to present.

MR JEANS said he would do that.

8:41: 06 AM

SENATOR OLSON said in looking at the whole intervention process
and the upheaval that happens within the school districts, there
seens to be a tension between the departnment and the |1 ocal
districts. As it nounts, the students whom they are trying to
help are the ones who are |osing out. What is the status of
t hat probl enf

8:42: 07 AM

MR. JEANS agreed there has been a lot of tension, which goes
back to the local control issue. He explained that the state had
a nunber of state operated schools in the 70s. Then it noved to
the local control nodel, so there has been a question as to how
much authority the departnent has when they know the schools are
| ow performng. This lawsuit brought that to light. The judge
made it very clear that if a school or district is chronically
| ow-performng, the state has an obligation and a duty to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 2, 2009



intervene, and local control nust give way. The legislature
under st ood t hat when they passed SB 285.

A nunber of school districts they are intervening in right now
believe the judge said the departnent has to give them nore
resources; the departnment believes she said the departnent has
to help them direct their resources nore effectively. If they
have to put people in the field to guarantee that prograns are
being inplenented in the classroons, “Then, Senator, we are
ready to go there, if that’s what it requires.” But, he said,
they would rather have the districts take the |l eadership role in
that area and work with the departnent to inplenent those
pr ogr ans.

8:44:18 AM
CHAIR ELTON asked how this issue is being nelded with the
stinmulus dollars that are comng for Title 1 schools.

MR. JEANS replied that their first effort is to try to
understand the stinmulus package. They believe they understand
Judge G eason’s instructions wth or wthout the stimnulus
package, but if they can make use of stinmulus funds, they wll
be | ooki ng at doing that.

CHAIR ELTON asked how many dollars are comng from the stinulus
package.

8.46: 13 AM
MR. JEANS replied that he does not know, but he didn't think
they would have a problem using them to inprove instructiona
practices.

CHAIR ELTON said it seens to him that the departnment has not
asked for a lot of new noney, but it did ask for $2 mllion for
an early learning pilot program in both urban and rural Al aska.
G ven the Judge’'s concerns and specificity on early education
he asked if the departnment is thinking at all of having the
pilot programin just rural Al aska rather than both.

MR. JEANS replied that the commi ssioner is dedicated to insuring
that the districts the departnment is intervening in have quality
early childhood progranms. It doesn't have to cone from that $2
mllion. Districts have a nunber of resources available for
that. If they offer a pre-K program Inpact Aide is a readily
avai l abl e resource. For exanple, Bering Straits School District
generated $1.1 million in Inmpact Aid for their three and four-

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 10- March 2, 2009



year olds. That is the level of detail they need to get into for
each district.

CHAIR ELTON asked if Bering Straits was successful in getting
t hose additional funds because their |eadership team knows how
to apply for them

8:48: 40 AM

MR. JEANS replied that he didn't think so; he thinks it's an
awar eness issue for the superintendents. “The ball is in their
court. | can’'t force themto apply for Inpact Ad funds, but it

is a resource that is available.” Some districts mght not have
enough students to nake it a viable option.

CHAIR ELTON said it seenms that given the authority the
departnment got from the legislature last year on intervention,
if there are Inpact A d dollars available and the districts
aren't taking advantage of them the department could apply for
themon their behalf.

8:49: 55 AM

MR. JEANS said Inpact Aid is a direct relationship between the
school districts and the federal governnment, and he cannot force
a district to apply for it. He hadn’t thought about whether SB
285 gives the departnment the ability to apply for those funds,
but he didn’t think they wanted to have that rol e anyhow.

8:50:41 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the bullet on the |ast page -
techni cal support on governance.

8:51: 28 AM

MR. JEANS said they have a contract with the School Boards
Association’s Norm Whoten who is providing sonme of the technical
support on governance issues. This is a piece they are pulling
toget her to make the whol e system worKk.

8:52: 00 AM

SENATOR STEVENS asked what the committee can expect to see in
the future on wusing experienced teachers for the retention
i ssue.

MR. JEANS responded that he needs to get together wth the
University that can provide research on whether or not that
woul d be an effective tool, and then he could cone back to the
| egi slature with a proposal.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 2, 2009



SENATOR STEVENS said he | ooks forward to that.

8:52: 50 AM

CHAI R ELTON went back to M. Jeans’ conment that it’s difficult
to provide quality education in the small communities. If that
is the case, is the departnent | ooking at regional school s?

MR. JEANS replied that maybe he used too broad a brush in making
that comment. Wth the high turnover in the small schools, it is
difficult to maintain quality. They are |ooking at regional
schools as a viable option on a voluntary basis, and are already
doing that wth Galena, Nenana Boarding School and M.
Edgecunbe. The departnment is not advocating for additional
regi onal schools, but the base closure in Galena has provided
them with additional facilities and they would like to ranmp up
their programfrom 150 to 400 students.

8:54: 35 AM
CHAIR ELTON reiterated Senator Davis's request for specifics
regarding the departnent’s response. He encouraged the

superintendents to also put together sone bullet points for the
commttee that suggest what they think sonme of the solutions are
and whether or not they can be handled within the existing
budget reci pe.

There being no further business to conme before the committee

Chair Elton adjourned the Senate Education Standing Commttee
nmeeting at 8:56.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 2, 2009



